#### PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 20 February 2018

**PRESENT:** Councillor A. Lenny (Chair)

#### Councillors:

S.M. Allen, J.M. Charles, S.A. Curry, I.W. Davies, J.A. Davies, P.M. Edwards, W.T. Evans, S.J.G. Gilasbey, J.K. Howell, J.D. James, C. Jones, D. Jones, H.I. Jones, M.J.A. Lewis, K. Lloyd, K. Madge, B.D.J. Phillips and G.B. Thomas.

#### Also in attendance:

Councillor J. Jenkins who addressed the Committee in respect of planning applications S/35962 and S/36429;

Councillor K. Broom who addressed the Committee in respect of planning application S/35028;

#### The following Officers were in attendance:

- J. Thomas, Senior Development Management Officer [South]
- K. James, Assistant Engineer Planning Liaison
- S. Murphy, Senior Solicitor
- J. Owen, Democratic Services Officer

#### Chamber, County Hall, Carmarthen - County Hall, Carmarthen - 1:30pm - 5.25pm

#### [Note:

- 1) In order to resolve a debate regarding a declaration of interest and seek solicitor's advice the Committee adjourned at 2:10pm and reconvened at 2:20pm;
- 2) At 4:30pm the Committee's attention was drawn to Council Procedure Rule 9 Duration of meeting and, as the meeting had been underway for nearly three hours it was **RESOLVED** to suspend standing orders to enable the Committee to complete the remaining business on the agenda;
- 3) At 4:30pm the Committee adjourned for a 5 minutes comfort break and reconvened at 4:35pm.]

#### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J.E. Williams.

#### 2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS

Councillor	Minute Item(s)	Nature of Interest
G.B. Thomas	Item 3.1 - RESIDENTIAL	In accordance with
	DEVELOPMENT FOR 51 DWELLINGS	paragraph 8a of the
	TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED	Members Code of
	WORKS AT LAND OFF CLOS Y	Conduct.
	BENALLT FAWR, FFOREST,	
	SWANSEA, SA4 0TQ	



- 3. TO CONSIDER THE HEAD OF PLANNING'S REPORTS ON THE FOLLOWING PLANNING APPLICATIONS [WHICH HAD BEEN THE SUBJECT OF EARLIER SITE VISITS BY THE COMMITTEE] AND TO DETERMINE THE APPLICATIONS
  - 3.1. S/35215 RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FOR 51 DWELLINGS TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS AT LAND OFF CLOS Y BENALLT FAWR, FFOREST, SWANSEA, SA4 0TQ

[Note: In accordance with paragraph 8a of the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Gareth Thomas left the meeting prior to consideration and determination thereof].

The Senior Development Management Officer (South) referred to the private site visit undertaken by the Committee earlier that day (Minute 3.1 of the Planning Committee held on the 11<sup>th</sup> January, 2018 refers) the purpose of which was to enable the Committee to assess visibility and access to the site from Fforest Road. He thereupon referred, with the aid of powerpoint slides, to the written report of the Head of Planning which provided an appraisal of the site together with a description of the development, a summary of consultation responses received and information on the local and national policies which were relevant to the assessment of the application.

The Committee was advised that the Head of Planning was recommending approval of the application for the reasons detailed within her written report.

Representations were received objecting to the application re-iterating the objections detailed within the Head of Planning's Report with the main emphasis of the objections concentrating on concerns regarding the attenuation pond and head wall, the impact upon the overall character of the Llwchwr Valley Special Landscape Area and the capacity of the junction of Clos Benallt with the A48.

The Applicant, Senior Development Management Officer and the Assistant Engineer – Planning Liaison responded to the issues raised.

#### **RESOLVED that:-**

- 3.1.1 planning application S/35215 be refused contrary to the Head of Planning's recommendation as the Committee was of the opinion that the development was contrary to LDP policies EQ6, TR3 and TAN 12:
- 3.1.2 the Head of Planning to submit a report to a future meeting detailing, for the Committee's endorsement and suggested planning reasons for the refusal of the application based on the above.



# 3.2. S/35962 - RETENTION OF GROUND FLOOR AS A DAYTIME CAFÉ BAR, WITH USE OF REAR GROUND AND FIRST FLOORS AS A NIGHTCLUB DURING EVENING HOURS, TOGETHER WITH ADDITION OF A REAR FIRE ESCAPE STAIRWELL AT 56 STEPNEY STREET, LLANELLI, SA15 3TG

The Senior Development Management Officer (South) referred to the private site visit undertaken by the Committee earlier that day (Minute 3.2 of the Planning Committee held on the 11<sup>th</sup> January, 2018 refers) the purpose of which was to enable the Committee to view the site to gain a better perception of the location of the proposed nightclub in relation to the neighbouring properties.

He thereupon referred, with the aid of powerpoint slides, to the written report of the Head of Planning which provided an appraisal of the site together with a description of the development, a summary of consultation responses received and information on the local and national policies which were relevant to the assessment of the application.

The Committee was advised that the Head of Planning was recommending approval of the application for the reasons detailed within her written report.

A representation from the local member was received objecting to the application re-iterating the objections as detailed within the Head of Planning's Report. The Senior Development Management Officer responded to the issues raised.

RESOLVED that planning application S/35962 be granted subject to the conditions detailed with the Head of Planning's written report.

## 3.3. S/36429 - TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION WITH A CAR PORT TO THE GROUND LEVEL AT 36 STRADEY PARK AVENUE, LLANELLI, SA15 3EF.

The Senior Development Management Officer (South) referred to the private site visit undertaken by the Committee earlier that day (Minute 3.2 of the Planning Committee held on the 11<sup>th</sup> January, 2018 refers) the purpose of which was to enable the Committee to assess whether the proposal could adversely impact on the amenity of the neighbouring property in terms of loss of light and to consider the character of the proposal in relation to the area. He thereupon referred, with the aid of powerpoint slides, to the written report of the Head of Planning which provided an appraisal of the site together with a description of the development, a summary of consultation responses received and information on the local and national policies which were relevant to the assessment of the application.

The Committee was advised that the Head of Planning was recommending approval of the application for the reasons detailed within her written report.



Representations were received objecting to the application re-iterating the objections detailed within the Head of Planning's Report with the primary areas of concern relating to the over-bearance and loss of light along with concerns that the application would result in a change of character to the street scene of Stradey Park Avenue.

The Applicant and Senior Development Management Officer responded to the issues raised.

RESOLVED that planning application S/36429 be refused contrary to the Head of Planning's recommendation as the Committee was of the opinion that the development was contrary to LDP policy GP6 on the basis that the amenity of the proposed extension would adversely impact upon the neighbouring property in terms of loss of light.

### 3.4. S/35028 - TWO STOREY DWELLING AT 15A BRYNCAERAU, TRIMSARAN, KIDWELLY, SA17 4DW.

[Note: Councillor Joseph Davies was not present at the Planning Committee held on the 11th December 2017 and therefore did not participate in the determination or vote on the decision of the application.]

The Senior Development Management Officer (South) referred to the private site visit undertaken by the Committee earlier that day (Minute 3.2 of the Planning Committee held on the 11<sup>th</sup> January, 2018 refers) the purpose of which was to enable the Committee to view the site and its access in view of the concerns raised regarding highway safety. He thereupon referred, with the aid of powerpoint slides, to the written report of the Head of Planning which provided an appraisal of the site together with a description of the development, a summary of consultation responses received and information on the local and national policies which were relevant to the assessment of the application.

The Committee was advised that the Head of Planning was recommending refusal of the application for the reasons detailed within her written report.

The local member who was in support of the application informed the Committee that the applicant had now signed the section 106 and that the neighbour on the right hand side of the property was amenable to discuss any developments required.

The Assistant Engineer – Planning Liaison responded to queries raised in relation to the possible visibility improvements on third party land at the site.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the planning application be deferred to enable the case officer to contact the applicant to discuss possible visibility improvements over adjacent third party land.



- 4. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON THE FOLLOWING DATES:-
  - 4.1. 1ST DECEMBER 2017

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 1<sup>st</sup> December 2017 be signed as a correct record.

4.2. 14<sup>TH</sup> DECEMBER 2017

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 14<sup>th</sup> December 2017 be signed as a correct record.

CHAIR	DATE

[PLEASE NOTE: These minutes reflect the order of business itemised on the agenda for the meeting which may differ from that on any webcast recording as applications with members of the public attending to speak would have been dealt with first.]

